
(Sound Check) 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA -VERSION 1 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

DECEMBER 16,2019 

7:30PM 

1. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. CALL TO ORDER 
4. LATE FILE ITEMS 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT AGENDA 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION. 
THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS DESIRED, 
THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED 
SEP ARA TEL Y. 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• December 9, 2019 

7. ORDINANCES 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
REGULAR AGENDA 

• ODNC043_11_ 12_19 Prohibition ofNon-Medical Mmijuana Retailers (211d Reading) 

(Approve) 

• ODNC044_11_ 12_ l9 Zoning Amendment- Prohibition ofNon-Medical Marijuana Establislunents 
(2nd Reading) 

• ODNC045_11 _ 12_19 Zoning Amendment - Definition "Marijuana Retailers" (2nd Reading) 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 1 



CONSENT AGENDA 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

DECEMBER 9, 2019 

7:15PM 
Pole Hearing- Bayberry Road 

The Counci l President called the meeting to order at 7:20pm. 9 present, 2 absent (Giunta, OBrien). Dave 
Boucher from National Grid spoke. Gail Derrivan spoke in favor. Hearing closed at 7:28pm. 

7:30PM 
The City Council President, BarTy Connell, called the meeting to order at 7:30pm, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. A moment of silence was held for Yolanda Coll ins and William "Smokey" Greenwood. The City 
Council President then instructed the City Clerk to call the roll. The following Councillors answered present: 
Shand, Tontar, Vogel, Zeid, Devlin, Eigerman, Giunta, Khan, McCauley, Connell. 10 present, 1 absent 
(OBrien). 

(Sound Check) 
1. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. CALL TO ORDER 
4. LATE FILE ITEMS - on Councillors' desks: new language for ORDR161_ 11 _25 _ 19 Preservation 

Restriction, language for ODNC044_ 11_ 12_ 19 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Tina Wasserman 
2. Marilyn Evans 
3. Jane Snow 
4. Nicole Nadeau 
5. Al Jason 
6. Connie Preston 
7. Allison Balentine 
8. Tim Brerman 
9. Matt Kane 
10. Lynn Schow 
11. Josh Baumfeld 
12. Mike Young 
13. Eileen Bemau 

6. MAYOR'S COMMENT 

20 Russia St 
41 Virginia Ln 
9 Coffin St 
6 Bayne Ln 
4 Wan·en St 
18 Atwood St 
6 Hart Rd 
26 Albetia Ave 
63 Curzon Mill Rd 
75 High St 
75 High St 
22 Charier St 
13R Bromfield St 

Snow Ban Parking 
Marijuana 
General Comment 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 
Marijuana 

The Mayor gave an update pursuant to her written communication. The Mayor and the City Council President 
jointly read a commendation for Councillor LatTy G. Giunta, Jr. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION. 
THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS DESIRED, 
THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED 
SEP ARA TEL Y. 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• November25, 20 19 

8. TRANSFERS 

(Approve) 

Page 1 



• NONE 

9. COMMUNICATIONS 
• NONE 

10. APPOINTMENT 
First Reading- NONE 

ALL ITEMS NOTED BELOW ARE REMOVED FROM THEIR RESPECTIVE COMM ITTEES WITH THE 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA: 

Budget & Finance 
• COMM 11 2 02 11 19 Memo re: Fire-Based EMS Cost/Benefit Analysis - - -
• COMM 120_03_ 11_19 Central Congregational Grant Award Letter 
• ORDRI32_07_ 15_ 19 CPC FY2020 Recommended Appropriations (COTW) 

Project No. 9 held in committee. 
• ORDR 136 08 19 19 Fuller Track Phase II Loan Order 
• COMM 189 _ 09 _ 09 _ 19 CPC Revised Recommendation for FY2020 Appropriations 
• ORDRI58 11 12 19 Rescission ofMarijuana Sales Tax (COTW) - - -
• TRAN065 11 25 19 Free Cash $15 .5K to Meeting Recording $15.5K - - -

License & Permits 
• COMM208_11_25_19 2020 Class II Vehicle License- Plum AutoWorks, Inc. 

Neighborhoods & City Services 
• COMM 194_1 0_15 _19 Ltr from Newburyport Livable Streets 
• COMM196_ 10_ 15_ 19 Ltr re: Road and Sidewalk Work on MerTimac and High Streets (COTW) 
• COMM 197_ 10_28_ 19 Ltr re: Phillips Drive Neighborhood Drainage (COTW) 
• ORDR 162 11 25 19 Bartlet Mall Resolution 

Public Safety 
• ORDR094_04_08_19 Traffic Changes- Green, Pleasant, and Titcomb Streets 
• ORDR 145 _ 09 _30 _19 Snow Emergency Parking - Greenleaf Street 
• ORDR146 09 30 19 Restricted Parking - Menimac Street at Ashland Street - - -
• COMM198_ 10_28_19 Ltr re: Middle Street Parking/Curb Cuts 

Councillor Devlin removed from the Consent Agenda. 
• ORDR 151 10 28 19 Amendment to 2-Hour Resident Zones - - -
• COMM202_ 11_ 12_19 Newburypori Rotary Santa Parade- 12/1 /2019 

Councillor Devlin removed from the Consent Agenda. 
• COMM205_ 11_12_19 Ladies' Night Out Run/Walk- 1217/2019 

Councillor Devlin removed from the Consent Agenda. 
• COMM209_ 11_25_19 Frigid Fiver- 1/26/2020 
• COMM210 _ 11_ 25 _ 19 Aha vas Achim Interfaith Candle Lighting- 12/ 16119-1/5/20 

Public Utilities 
• COMM206_ ll_25_19 Pole Hearing- BaybeiTy Road 

City Council Minutes December 9, 2019 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
REGULAR AGENDA 

Page 2 



Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Giunta. So 
voted. 

11. MAYOR'S UPDATE 

12. APPOINTMENTS 
Second Reading- NONE 

13. ORDERS 
• ORDR163EP _ 12_09_ 19 Emergency Preamble - MotTill Charitable Foundation Gift Acceptance 

$ 11 0K 
Motion to waive the rules by Councillor Eigennan, seconded by Councillor Tontar. So voted. 
Motion to approve by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor Vogel. So voted. 

• ORDR163_12_09_ 19 Morrill Charitable Foundation Gift Acceptance $ !!OK 
Motion to approve by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor KJ1an. So voted. 

14. ORDINANCES 
• ODNC042 _ 09 _30 _ 19 Parking at Public Parks and Playgrounds (211

d Reading) 
Motion to approve second reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Tontar. Roll call 
vote, 10 yes, I absent (OBrien). Motion passed. 

15. COMMITTEE ITEMS 
NOTE: UNDERLINED COMMITTEE ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING 

Budget & Finance 
In Committee: 
• COMM112 02 1 1 19 Memo re: Fire-Based EMS Cost/Benefit Analysis 

Motion to receive and file by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 
• COMM120 03 11 19 Central Congregational Grant Award Letter 

Motion to receive and file by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 
• ORDR132 07 15 19 CPC FY2020 Recommended Appropriations (COTW> 

Project No. 9 held in committee. 
Motion to refer to Budget & Finance for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by Councillor 
Tontar, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

• ORDR136 08 19 19 Fuller Track Phase II Loan Order 
Motion to refer to Budget & Finance for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by Councillor 
Tontar, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

• COMlVI189 09 09 19 CPC Revised Recommendation for FY2020 Appropriations 
Motion to refer to Budget & Finance for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by Councillor 
Tontar, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

• ORDRI58 11 12 19 Rescission of Marijuana Sales Tax (COTW> 
Motion to waive Rule 120 , as one ofthe sponsoring councillors was not present, by Councillor Zeid, 
seconded by Councillor Giunta. So voted. Motion to approve by Councillor Tontar, seconded by 
Councillor Ze id. Roll call vote, 9 yes, I present (Vogel), 1 absent (OBtien). Motion passed. 

• TRAN065 11 25 19 Free Cash $15.5K to Meeting Recording $15.5K 
Motion to approve by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

Education 
In Committee: 

• 

City Council Minutes December 9, 2019 Page 3 



General Government 
In Committee: 

• 

License & Permits 
In Committee: 

• COMM029_04_30_1 8 Outdoor Seating - West Row Cafe 
• COMM 104_01_14_19 Seacoast Taxi- Application by Richard Hewlett for 20 19 
• ODNC043 11 12 19 Prohibition of Non-Medical Marijuana Retailers (COTW) 

Motion to remove from License & Permit and Committee of the Whole by Councillor Vogel, seconded 
by Councillor Tontar. So voted (1 no - Vogel). Motion to waive Rule 12D, as one of the sponsoring 
councillors was not present, by Counci llor Giunta, seconded by Councillor Zeid. Roll call vote, l 0 yes, 1 
absent (OBrien). Motion passed. Motion to approve first reading ( comm vote 2-l, Vogel) by Counci llor 
Zeid, seconded by Councillor Giunta. Roll call vote, 9 yes, 1 present (Vogel), 1 absent (OBrien). Motion 
passed. 

• COMM208 11 25 19 2020 C lass II Vehicle License- Plum AutoWorks. Inc. 
Motion to approve by Councillor Vogel, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

Neighborhoods & City Services 
In Committee: 
• ORDR048 06 13 16 Sidewalk Order 
• COMM 111_ 10_10_ 17 Petition for Road Repairs and Repaving - Squires Glen 
• COMM194 10 15 19 Ltr from Newburyport Livable Streets 

Motion to refer to Neighborhood & City Services for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by 
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Khan. So voted. 

• COMM196 10 15 19 Ltr re: Road and Sidewalk Work on Merrimac and Hi2h Streets (COT'W) 
Motion to refer to Neighborhood & City Services for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by 
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Khan. So voted. 

• COMM197 10 28 19 Ltr re: Phillips Drive Nei2hborhood Draina2e (COTW) 
Motion to refer to Neighborhood & City Services for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by 
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Khan. So voted . 

• ORDR162 11 25 19 Bartlet Mall Resolution 
Motion to approve by Councillor Zeid , seconded by Councillor Shand. So voted. 

Planning & Development 
In Committee: 
• ODNC029 _ 0 l_ 28 _ 19 Zoning Map Amendment - Storey Ave South 
• ODNC038_07_15_ 19 Zoning Amendment - Waterfront West Overlay District (COTW) 
• COMM 185_09_09_ 19 Memo re: Waterfront West Sustainability 
• COMM201_ 10_28_19 Memo re: Proposed Zoning Change- WWOD 
• ODNC045 11 12 19 Zonin2 Amendment- Definition "Marijuana Retailers" (w/ PB and 

COTW) 
Motion to remove from Planning & Development and Committee of the Whole by Councillor 
Eigennan, seconded by Councillor Giunta. So voted (1 present- Vogel). Motion to waive Rule 12D, 
as one of the spons01ing counci llors was not present by Councillor Eigennan, seconded by Councillor 
Zeid. So voted. Motion to approve first reading (comm vote 3-0) by Counci llor Eigennan, seconded 
by Counci llor Zeid. Roll call vote, 9 yes, l present (Vogel), 1 absent (OBrien). Motion passed. 

• ODNC044 11 12 19 Zonin2 Amendment- Prohibition of Non-Medical Marijuana 
Establishments (w/ PB and COTW) 

City Council Minutes December 9, 2019 Page 4 



Motion to remove from Plmming & Development and Committee of the Whole by Councillor 
Eigetman, seconded by Councillor Giunta. So voted ( 1 present- Vogel). Motion to waive Rule 12D, 
as one of the sponsoring councillors was not present, by Councillor Eigennan, seconded by Councillor 
Giunta. So voted. Motion to approve first reading with the following amendments: l. Change NP to SP 
in I-1, I-1 B on Table of Use Regulations, 2. strike " marijuana retai ler" and insert "medical marijuana 
treatment center" on page 3, by Councillor Eigennan, seconded by Councillor Giunta. Counci llor 
Eigennan yielded the floor to Councillor Khan. Motion to amend Section XXXI-F.2. , strike "No 
marijuana business" and replace with "Neither use number 802 (marijuana establishments without 
retail sales) nor use number 803 (medical marijuana treatment centers or registered marijuana 
dispensaries)"; replace " marijuana businesses" with "matijuana establishments" tlu·oughout the 
ordinance, by Councillor Khan, seconded by Councillor Eigem1an. Roll call vote on the amendments, 
9 yes, I present (Vogel), 1 absent (OBrien). Motion to approve as amended by Councillor Eigerman, 
seconded by Councillor Giunta. Roll call vote, 9 yes, 1 present (Vogel), I absent (OBrien). 

The City Council President called a special meeting pursuant to Rule 2A and waived the rules such 
that the Clerk does not have to physically deliver notice of the meeting. 

• ORDR161 11 25 19 Preservation Restriction- 25 Water Street 
Motion to remove from Plarming & Development by Councillor Eigerman, seconded by Councillor 
Zeid. So voted. Motion to approve as amended, insert "Whereas both the patiies to this agreement 
acknowledge that there are various ariifacts that deserve protection and that both parties agree to work 
together in good faith to identify, document, and protect said artifacts as soon as is reasonably 
practicable" on page 2; add "As stated above, it is the intention of the Grantor and Grantee that this 
Restriction supersede and replace in the entirety the Prior Restrictions, including the Preservation 
Restriction Agreement between the Grantor and the Commission recorded at the Registry on March 
13, 2002, as Document No. 415394. Accordingly, the second resttiction and condition of the Deed 
shall be of no further force and effect; provided, however, that to the extent any provision of this 
Restriction is inconsistent with any other provision of the Deed, including, without limitation, the 
other restrictions and conditions of the Deed, numbered l , 3, 4, 5, and 6, the provisions of the Deed 
shall control." in Section 2.b.; strike "Grantor" and replace with "Grantee" in Section 4.b. (iv), in 
committee (comm vote 3-0) by Counci llor Eigem1an, seconded by Councillor Zeid. Roll call vote, 10 
yes, 1 absent (OBrien). Motion passed. 

Public Safety 
In Committee: 

• ODNC009 _ 03 _12 _18 Floating Homes, Houseboats, and Related Marinas 
• COMM087 09 24 18 Ltr re: Coffin Street 
• COMM I 16 _ 02_ 25 _ 19 Toward Zero Waste Newburypoti Initiative (full text m·ai/able) (COTW) 
• ORDR094 04 08 19 Traffic Chan2es- Green. Pleasant. and Titcomb Streets 

Motion to receive and file by Councillor Devlin, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 
• ODNC035_05_28_19 Amendment to Health and Sanitation (COTW) 
• ORDR 145 09 30 19 Snow Emer2ency Parkin2- Greenleaf Street 

Motion to amend, change from Greenleaf Street to Auburn Street on the westerly side from Vemon 
Street to Pole 9; add "vehicles shall move no later than twelve hours after snow emergency ceases to 
allow for snow removal"; add "this order shall expire April 30, 202 I", by Counci llor Devlin, seconded 
by Councillor Shand. So voted. Motion to approve as amended by Councillor Devlin, seconded by 
Counci llor Shand. So voted. 

• ORDR146 09 30 19 Restricted Parkin2- Merrimac Street at Ashland Street 
Motion to approve as amended, change fro m Section 13-168 to 13-174; add "for no longer than thirty 
minutes", by Councillor Devlin, seconded by Councillor Tontar. So voted ( 1 no - Zeid). 

• COMM198 10 28 19 Ltr re: Middle Street Parking/Curb Cuts 

City Council Minutes December 9, 2019 Page 5 



Motion to remove fro m Public Safety by Counci llor Devlin, seconded by Councillor Tontar So voted. 
Motion to refer to Public Safety for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by Counci llor 
Devlin, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

• ORDR151 10 28 19 Amendment to 2-Hour Resident Zones 
Motion to receive and file by Counci llor Devlin, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 

• COMM202 11 12 19 Newburyport Rotary Santa Parade -1 2/ l /2019 
• COMM205 11 12 19 Ladies' Night Out Runf\.Valk- 12/7/2019 
• COMM209 11 25 19 Frigid Fiver- 1/26/2020 

Motion to approve by Councillor Devlin, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted. 
• COMM210 11 25 19 Ahavas Achim Interfaith Candle Lighting- 12/16/19-1/5/20 

Motion to approve by Counci llor Devlin, seconded by Councillor Tontar. So voted. 

Public Utilities 
In Committee: 

• COMM 122_11 _ 27 _ 17 Mobi litie Application/ Small Cell Utility Petition (re-fi le) 
• ODNC022_05_29_ 18 Addition to Chapter 5, Article 6 - Small Cell Sites 
• COMM206 11 25 19 Pole Hearing- Bayberry Road 

Motion to refer to Public Uti lities for the next Council Session pursuant to Rule 7H by Counci llor Zeid , 
seconded by Councillor Giunta. So voted. 

Rules 
In Committee: 
• ORDR057 08 27 18 Amendment to Council Rule 12A 

16. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Councillor Connell thanks the Councillors fo r their efforts and cogent arguments. 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjoum by Councillor Vogel, seconded by Counci llor Khan. So voted. 1 0:43pm. 

City Council Minutes December 9, 2019 Page 6 



END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
BEGINNING OF REGULAR AGENDA 



ORDINANCES 



ODNC043_11_12_19 
2 nd Reading 

CJ[1rY (QJF NlE~VJB\lU[JR.. YPO>lRl1[' 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED: 

November 12,2019 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS RELATIVE TO RETAIL MARIJUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows: 

Chapter 9: LICENSES, PERJ\!IITS AND BUSINESS REGULATIONS 

That the following new Article shall be inserted: 

General Ordinance: Chapter 9 Article X Prohibition of Non-Medical Marijuana Retailers. 
Consistent with G.L. c. 9-!G Section 3Ca)(2) "Marijuana Retailers" as defined in G.L. c. 9-!G 
Section 1 shall be prohibited within the City of Newbmyport. This prohibition shall not apply to 
the sale distribution manufacture or cultivation of marijuana for medical putposes. 

Councillor Larry G. Giunta, \v'ard 5 

Councillor Thomas F. O Brien, \'{lard 6 

Councillor Barry N. Connell, At-Large 



In City Council December 9, 2019: 

ODNC043_11_12_19 
2"d Reading 

Motion to remove from License & Permit and Committee of the \'\'hole by Councillor Vogel, 
seconded by Councillor Tontar. So voted (1 no - Vogel). Motion to waive Rule 120, as one of the 
sponsoring councillors was not present, by Councillor Giunta, seconded by Councillor Zeid. Roll 
call vote, 10 yes, 1 absent (OBrien). Motion passed. lo tio n to apprm·e ftrst reading (comm vote 2-
1, Vogel) by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Giunta. Roll call vote, 9 yes, 1 present (Vogel), 
1 absent (OBrien). Motion passed. 



ODNC044_11_12_19 
2 nd Reading 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED: 

November 12,2019 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS RELATIVE TO RETAIL MARIJUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport that the following be changes are 
made to the Newburyport Zoning Code (NZO) (deletions are indicated by strikethrough): 

SECTION V.- USE REGULATIONS 
V-D- Table of use regulations . 

8. 
MARIJUANA-

RELATED 
USES 

HSR-

USE NUM CON 
A, R-

HSR- 1 
B 

Marijuana 
establishment 

802 NP NP NP 
(without retail 

sales) 

Medical 
Marijuana 

treatment center 
NP 

or registered 803 Np <il NP (il (i) 
man Juana 

dispensa1y (with 
retail sales) 

R- R-
2 3 

NP NP 

NP NP 
(i) (i) 

B- B- B-
I-1 

I-
I-2 M WMD WMU 

1* 2 3 1B 

NP NP NP 
SP SP 

NP N P NP N P ~1) ~1) 

SP NP NP NP NP NP N P 
(h) (i) (i) (i) (i) (i) (i) N P (il NP <il 



V-H- Reserved. 

ODNC044_11_12_19 
2"d Reading 



SECTION XXXI.- LICENSED MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS 
XXXI-A- Purposes. 

ODNC044_11_12_19 
2nd Reading 

The purpose of this section is to provide requirements for both medical and recreational 
marijuana establishments in the City ofNewbmyport in as much as: 

1. Medical marijuana treatment centers (MMTCs), also known as "registered marijuana 
dispensaries" (RMDs), are authorized in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts pursuant to 
Chapter 369 of the Acts of 2012 (entided "An Act for the Humanitarian Medical Use of 
Marijuana"), M.G.L. Chapter 941 (entided "Medical Use of Marijuana") and 105 CMR 725 
(entitled "Implementation of an act for the humanitarian medical use of marijuana"); 

2. "Marijuana establishments" for the adult, non-medical use of marijuana, are authorized in 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts pursuant to Chapter 334 of d1e Acts of 2016, as 
amended by Chapter 351 of the Acts of 2016 and Chapter 55 of d1e Acts of 2017, as 
further codified in General Laws Chapter 94G (entitled "Regulation of tl1e Use and 
Distribution of Marijuana Not Medically Prescribed") and regulations promulgated by the 
Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission (CCC) in 935 CMR 500 (~ntided "Adult Use 
of Marijuana"); 

3. The city seeks to protect the public welfare, health and safety of the residents of 
Newburyport; 

4. These zoning regulations provide for the placement of certain marijuana-related 
establishments in suitable locations; and 

5. The city seeks to minimize any po tential adverse impacts of medical and recreational 
marijuana-related establishments on adjacent properties, residential neighborhoods, 
schools, playgrounds and other locations where minors congregate by regulating the siting, 
design, placement, security and removal of such marijuana establishments. 

XXXI-B -Definitions. 
Where not expressly defined in this section or elsewhere in the Newburyport Zoning 

Ordinance, terms used in this section (A.e~rxl) shall be interpreted as defined in the statutes and 
regulations cited in section XXXI-A§ 1 and 2 above. 

Commission or CCC means the Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission established by 
M.G.L.A. c. 10, § 76, or its designee. 

Departmmt of public health or DPH means the Massachusetts Department of Public Health. 

License means the required certificate issued by the commonweald1 for a marijuana 
establishment. 

Licensee means a person or entity licensed by the commonwealth to operate a marijuana 
establishment. 

Marijuana establishment means a marijuana cultivator, craft marijuana cooperative, marijuana 
product manufactmer, Medical Marijuana Treatment Cen ter (MMTC), independent testing 
laboratory, marijuana research facility, marijuana transporter, or any other type of licensed 
marijuana-related establishments, as set forth in M.G.L.A. c. 94G, § 1 and regulations promulgated 
thereunder, but not including so-called marijuana retailers. 

Medical marijuana treatment center (MMTC) , also known as a registered marijuana dispensary 
(RMD), means an entity registered under 105 CMR 725.100: Registration of registered marijuana 



ODNC044_11_12_19 
2nd Reading 

dispensaries, or licensed by the cannabis control commission pursuant to M.G.L.A. c. 94I, that 
acquires, cultivates, possesses, processes (including development of related products such as edible 
cannabis or marijuana products, tinctures, aerosols, oils, or ointments), transfers, transports, sells, 
distributes, dispenses, or'administers marijuana, products containing cannabis or marijuana, related 
supplies, or educational materials to registered qualifying patients or their personal caregivers for 
medical use. U nless othetwise specified, RMD refers to the site(s) of dispensing, cultivation, and 
preparation of cannabis or marijuana for medical use. 

XXXI-C- Special permit required. 
Pursuant to M.G.L.A. c. 40A, as well as under the home-mle powers of the city pursuant to 

Sections 1 and 6 of Article II of the Articles of Amendment of the Constitution of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as amended by Article LXXXIX of said Articles of Amendment, 
and in order to mitigate potential secondary adverse impacts, a special permit is required for a 
marijuana establishment within the City ofNewbmyport. 

XXXI-D - License requirements and conditions of use. 
1. Marijuana establishments shall be properly licensed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Cannabis Control Commission (CCC) or Department of Public Health (DPH), as applicable, 
pursuant to regulations promulgated therefore. 

2. No marijuana establishment shall be permitted for, or o the1wise allow, on-premises social 
consumption. 

3. No marijuana establishment shall be permitted to operate outside of an enclosed building or 
structure. 

4. No mariju~na establishment, with the exception of properly licensed medical marijuana 
treatment centers (MMTCs), shall be permitted to conduct in-person retail sales to consumers 
on prerruses. 

5. The total cumulative square footage of all marijuana cultivators permitted within the Business 
and Industry Park zoning districts (I-1 and I-1B) shall be limited to one hundred thousand 
(1 00,000) square feet. The total number of marijuana cultivators in the Business and Industry 
Park zoning districts (1-1 and I-1B) shall not exceed two (2). 

XXXI-E - Parking requirements. 
Parking requirements for marijuana establishments, as those establishments are more 

particularly defined in M.G.L.A. c. 94G and the regulations promulgated thereunder, shall be as 
follows: 

• "Craft marijuana cooperative": one (1) per employee plus one (1) per three hundred (300) 
square feet gross floor area 

• "Independent testing laboratory": 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per 
company vehicle 

• "Marijuana cultivator"; 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per company vehicle 

• "Marijuana establishment"; 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per company 
vehicle, unless otherwise noted 

• "Marijuana product manufacturer"; 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per 
company vehicle 



ODNC044_11_12_19 
2nd Reading 

• "Marijuana transporter"; 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per company 
vehicle 

• "Medical marijuana treatment center"; one (1) per employee plus one (1) per three hundred 
(300) square feet gross floor area 

• ."Microbusiness"; 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per company vehicle 

• "Research facility"; 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per company vehicle 

• Any other marijuana establishment: 0.75 per employee in maximum shift plus one (1) per 
company vehicle 

XXXI-F.- Required buffer zones and restrictions on use. 
1. Residential districts. No marijuana establishment within the Business and Industry Park zoning 

district (I-1 and I-1B) shall be located or permitted within two hundred fifty (250) feet of any 
residential district. Nor shall any Marijuana establishment within said district (I-1 and I-1B) be 
located or permitted northwest of Hale Street. Nor shall any public entrance to a marijuana 
establishment located within the Business district (B-1) be located within one hundred (100) 
feet of any residential district. Nor shall any marijuana establishment within said district (B-1) be 
located or permitted at a lot that has easterly frontage along State Street, nor at a lot with 
westerly frontage along State Street and north of number 149 State Street (Map 34. Parcel 14). 

2. Protected uses. Neither use number 802 (marijuana establishments without retail sales) nor use 
number 803 (medical marijuana treatment centers or registered marijuana dispensaries) shall be 
located or permitted within five hundred (500) feet of any public entrance to the following uses, 
regardless of whether such use is enclosed within a structure or building, except that in the 
Business district (B-1) centered around the intersection of State Street and Route 1 (Route 1 
Traffic Circle), said minimum distance shall be two hundred fifty (250) feet: 

a. A pre-existing public or private school providing education in kindergarten or any of 
grades one (1) through twelve (12); 

b. A pre-existing nursery school or daycare facility; 

c. A pre-existing public library; 

d. A pre-existing public park or playground; 

e. A pre-existing municipal youth or recreation center; 

f. A pre-existing public swimming pool; or 

g. Any similar pre-existing facility in which children commonly congregate m an 
organized, ongoing, formal basis. 

XXXI~G- Permitting procedure and criteria for approval. 
Permit granting authority. The planning board shall act as the designated special permit granting 

authority (SPGA) in administering this section. 

Special permit required. Marijuana establishments may be permitted only pursuant to a special 
permit hereunder. The planning board shall review and may deny, approve, or approve "vith 
conditions all applications hereunder in accordance with the procedures listed in section X-H.8. The 
SPGA shall approve an establishment if the SPGA determines that the proposed use meets all the 
requirements of this section and, in addition, the special permit criteria of section X-H.7. 



ODNC044_11_12_19 
2nd Reading 

Application for a special permit shall be submitted to the SPGA pursuant to the submission 
requirements, and procedures contained in section X-H.7. 

Documentation required to support an application. To support any special permit application under this 
section, the applicant shall provide as part of the application to the SPGA the following 
documentation: 

1. A copy of its application, registration and/ or certificate as a marijuana establishment from 
the CCC or DPH (as applicable); 

2. A letter &om the owner of the property on which the proposed marijuana establishment is 
to be located indicating approval of the proposed use and submission of the application to 
the SPGA. 

3. A detailed floor plan of the premises of the proposed marijuana establishment that 
identifies the square footage available and describes the functional areas of the proposed 
use; 

4. Detailed site plans that include the following information: 

a. Compliance with the requirements for parking and loading spaces, for lot size, 
frontage, yards and heights and coverage of buildings, and all other provisions of this 
ordinance; · 

b. Convenience and safety of vehicular and pedestrian movement on the site and for the 
location of driveway openings in relation to street traffic; 

c. Convenience and safety of vehicular and pedestrian movement off the site, if vehicular 
and pedestrian traffic off-site can reasonably be expected to be substantially affected 
by on-site changes; 

d. Adequacy as to the arrangement and the number of parking and loading spaces in 
relation to the proposed use of the premises (and anticipated number of visitors), 
including designated parking for employees and home delivery vehicle(s), as 
applicable; 

e. Design and appearance of proposed buildings, sttuctures, freestanding signs, screening 
and landscaping; and 

f. Adequacy of water and electrical supply, surface and subsurface drainage and site 
lighting. 

5. A description of any proposed security measures for the marijuana establishment, 
including but not limited to security cameras and employee security policies; 

6. A copy of proposed waste disposal procedures for the marijuana establishment; 

7. A detailed description and rendering of the applicant's proposed signage to advertise the 
location of the marijuana establishment and/ or services available at the proposed 
marijuana establishment. 

8. A traffic impact analysis (traffic study) for the proposed use and site consistent with the 
requirements of section A.'V-E(b)(4) of this ordinance; and 



ODNC044_11_12_19 
2nd Reading 

9. Documentation regarding the projected use, and adequacy, of public and private utilities 
and infrastiucture required for operation of the proposed marijuana establishment, 
including, but not limited to: 

a. Water. 

b. Wastewater. 

c. E lectricity. 

These materials shall be in addition to those submission materials required in section X-H (7) 
"special permits." 

Traffic and impact studies. To aid the SPGA in its review, the owner shall pay all costs for the 
SPGA to engage a properly licensed traffic engineer, consulting engineer or other professionals 
experienced in the review of traffic studies and/ or community impact reports, deemed necessary in 
the opinion of the SPGA to ensure that the proposed marijuana establishment will not unduly 
burden the city's water and wastewater systems or result in undue traffic congestion or safety 
concerns in the immediate vicinity of the proposed facility and/ or site. The portions of this section 
(and its regulations, if any) requiring the payment of consultant fees are promulgated under the 
concurrent authority of M.G.L.A. c. 44, § 53G. 

Signage. All signage shall conform to the requirements of the Newburyport Zoning Ordinance. 
The SPGA may impose additional restrictions on signage as appropriate to mitigate any aesthetic 
impacts. Use of medical symbols, images of marijuana, related paraphernalia, and text or colloquial 
references to cannabis and marijuana on any signage is prohibited. 

. Departmental retJiew. The SPGA shall refer copies of the application to the building department, 
flre department, police department, board of health, and the department of pub4c works. These 
boards/ departments shall review the application and shall submit their written recommendations to 
the SPGA. Failure to make recommendations within forty-five (45) days of referral of the 
application shall be deemed lack of opposition. 

XXXI-H - Decision and conditions of approval. 
Public bearing and decision. After notice and public hearing (in accordance with section X-H (7) and 

consideration of application materials, consultant reviews, public comments, and the 
recommendations of other city boards and departments, the SPGA may act upon such a permit. 

Required findings. The SPGA may approve a marijuana establishment application only if it makes 
written findings based upon evidence in the record that the applicant has satisfied the requirements 
of this section and section X-H(7)(A). 

Special permit conditions. The SPGA shall impose conditions upon the issuance of a marijuana 
establishment special permit reasonably appropriate to improve site design, traffic flow, public 
safety, protect water quality, air quality, and significant environmental resources, preserve the 
character of the surrounding area and otherwise serve the purpose of this section. In addition to any 
specific conditions applicable to the applicant's marijuana establishment, the SPGA shall include the 
following conditions in any special permit granted under this section: 

1. Hours of operation (if any). 

11. The permit holder shall provide to the building inspector, director of planning and 
development, director of public health, fire chief and police marshal, the name, telephone 
number and electronic mail address of a contact person in the event that such person 



ODNC044_11_12_19 
2"d Reading 

needs to be contacted after regular business hours to address an urgent issue. Such contact 
informacion shall be kept updated by the permit holder. 

111. The special permit authorizing the establishment of a marijuana establishment shall be 
valid only for the specific registered person or entity to which the special permit was 
issued, and only for the site on which the marijuana establishment has been authorized by 
special permit. If any license for the marijuana establishment has been revoked or if the 
license is to be transferred to another controlling entity, or is to be relocated to a different 
site, a new special permit shall be required. 

1v. A marijuana establishment shall be located only in a permanent building and not within 
any mobile facility. All sales shall be conducted either within the building or by home 
deliveries to qualified clients pursuant to applicable state and local regulations. This 
provision shall not be construed to limit or prohibit the transport of marijuana and 
marijuana-related products in accordance with CCC regulations. 

v. A special permit shall only be valid for use by the applicant and will become null and void 
upon the sale or transfer of the license of a marijuana establishment or a change in the 
location of the establishment. 

Vl. In the event that the commonwealth's licensing authority suspends the license or 
registration of a marijuana establishment, the special pertnit shall be so suspended by the 
city until the matter is resolved to the satisfaction of said licensing authority. 

vu. The special permit shall be considered null and void if meaningful construction has not 
begun on the project within two (2) years of obtaining said permit, or such additional time 
extension as may be granted at the discretion of the planning board. 

~· The permit holder shall notify the building inspector, director of planning and 
development, director of public health, fire chief and police marshal and the spga in writing 
within forty-eight (48) hours of the cessation of operation of the marijuana establishment 
or the expiration or termination of the license holder's certificate or registration with the 
CCC and/ or DPH. 

lX. The permit holder shall at all times comply with regulations regarding marijuana 
establishments promulgated by the board of health. 

x. The police department, fire department, building inspector, zoning enforcement officer, 
director of planning and development and director of public health shall have the right to 
inspect the subject premises to assure compliance with the special permit. 

XL . Prohibition against nuisances: No use or operation shall be allowe~ at any marijuana 
establishment which creates a nuisance to abutters or to the surrounding area, or which 
creates any hazard, including but not limited to, fire, explosion, fumes, gas, smoke, odors, 
obnoxious dust, vapors, offensive noise or vibration, flashes, glare, objectionable effluent 
or electrical interference, which may impair the notmal use and peaceful enjoyment of any 
property, structure or dwelling in the area. · 

Councillor Larry G . Giunta, Ward 5 



In City Council December 9, 2019: 

ODNC044_11_12_19 
2"d Reading 

Conncillor Thomas F. OBrien, Ward 6 

Conncillor Barry N . Connell, At-Large 

Motion to remove from Planning & Development and Committee of the Whole by Councillor 
Eigerman, seconded by Councillor Giunta. So voted (1 present- Vogel) . Motion to waive Rule 
12D, as one of the sponsoring councillors was not present, by Councillor Eigetman, seconded by 
Councillor Giunta. So voted. Motion to approve first reading with the following amendments: 1. 
Change NP to SPin 1-1, I-1B on Table of Use Regulations, 2. strike "marijuana retailer" and 
insert "medical marijuana treatment center" on page 3, by Councillor Eigerman, seconded by 
Councillor Giunta. Councillor Eigerman yielded the floor to Councillor Khan. Motion to amend 
Section XXXI-F.2., strike "No marijuana business" and replace with "Neither use number 802 
(marijuana establishments without retail sales) nor use number 803 (medical marijuana treatment 
centers or registered marijuana dispensaries)"; replace "marijuana businesses" with " marijuana 
establishments" throughout the ordinance, by Councillor Khan, seconded by Councillor 
Eigerman. Roll call vote on the amendments, 9 yes, 1 present (Vogel), 1 absent (OBrien). Motion 
to approve as amended by Councillor Eigerman, seconded by Councillor Giunta. Roll call vote, 9 
yes, 1 present (Vogel), 1 absent (OBrien) . 



ORDERED: 

<CJ[1[Y (QJF NlE~VlB'>lU[]R:.. YJP>O>lR.l[' 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ODNC045_11_12_19 
2"d Reading 

November 12, 2019 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS RELATIVE TO RETAIL MARIJUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS 

Be it ordained by the City Omncil of the City of Newburyport that the following be inserted into 
the Newburyport Zoning Code (NZO): 

Zmling Ordinance: Section V-I. Prohibition of Non-Medical Marijuana. Retailers. Consistent with 
G.L. c. 94G, Section 3(a)(2l. "Marijuana Retailers" as defined in G.L. c. 94G. Section L shall be 
prohibited within the Citv of Newburyport. 1his prohibition shall not apply to the sale. distribution. 
manufacture or cultivation of marijuana for medical purposes. 

Councillor Larry G. Giunta, Ward 5 

Councillor Thomas F. OBrien, Ward 6 

Councillor Barry N . Connell, At-Large 



In City Council December 9, 2019: 

ODNC045_11_12_19 
2"d Reading 

Motion to remove from Planning & Development and Committee of the Whole by Councillor 
Eigennan, seconded by Councillor Giunta. So voted (1 present - Vogel). Motion to waive Rule 
120, as one of the sponsming councillors was not present by Councillor Eigennan, seconded by 
Councillor Zeid. So voted. Motion to approve first reading (comm vote 3-0) by Councillor 
Eigennan, seconded by Councillor Zeid. Roll call vote, 9 yes, 1 present (Vogel), I absent 
(OBrien) . Motion passed. 


	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes_12_09_19

	Regular Agenda
	Ordinances
	ODNC043_11_12_19
	ODNC044_11_12_19
	ODNC045_11_12_19




